


 1923 E AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761  -  www.flyontario.com 1 
 

 

ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY 

COMMISSION AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

SEPTEMBER 26, 2017 AT 3:00 P.M. 
Ontario International Airport Administration Offices 
1923 E. Avion Street, Room 100, Ontario, CA 91761 

 
Alan D. Wapner 
President 
 
Ronald O. Loveridge 
Vice President  
 
Jim W. Bowman 
Commissioner 
 
Curt Hagman  
Commissioner 
 
Julia Gouw 
Commissioner 

  
 

 
Mark A. Thorpe 
Interim Chief Executive Officer  

 
Lori D. Ballance 
General Counsel 
 
Jeff P. Reynolds 
Treasurer 
 

 

 
Welcome to the Regular Meeting of the Ontario International Airport Authority. 

• All documents for public review are on file at the Ontario International Airport Administration Offices 

located at 1923 E. Avion Street, Ontario, CA 91761. 

• Anyone wishing to speak during public comment or on a item will be required to fill out a blue slip.  Blue 

slips must be turned in prior to public comment beginning or before an agenda item is taken up.  The 

Secretary/Assistant Secretary will not accept blue slips after that time. 

• Comments will be limited to 3 minutes.  Speakers will be alerted when they have 1-minute remaining and 

when their time is up.  Speakers are then to return to their seats and no further comments will be 

permitted. 

• In accordance with State Law, remarks during public comment are to be limited to subjects within the 

Authority’s jurisdiction.  Remarks on other agenda items will be limited to those items. 

• Remarks from those seated or standing in the back of chambers will not be permitted.  All those wishing to 

speak, including Commissioners and Staff, need to be recognized by the Authority President before 

speaking. 



September 26,  2017 

1923 E. AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761  -  www.flyontario.com 2 

ORDER OF BUSINESS The Authority meeting begins Public Comment at 3:00 p.m. 
immediately followed by the Special Meeting.  

(EQUIPMENT FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED IS AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST 
AT THE REGULAR MEETING.) 

CALL TO ORDER (OPEN SESSION) 3:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL  

Loveridge, Bowman, Hagman, Gouw, President Wapner 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

PUBLIC COMMENTS    3:00 p.m. 

The Public Comment portion of the Authority meeting is limited to 30 minutes with each 
speaker given a maximum of 3 minutes.  An opportunity for further Public Comment may 
be given at the end of the meeting.  Under provisions of the Brown Act, the Commission 
is prohibited from taking action on oral requests. 

As previously noted -- if you wish to address the Commission, fill out one of the blue slips 
at the rear of the chambers and give it to the Secretary/Assistant Secretary. 

AGENDA REVIEW/ANNOUNCEMENTS  The Chief Executive Officer will go 
over all updated materials and correspondence received after the Agenda was distributed 
to ensure Commissioners have received them.   

SPECIAL CEREMONIES 

OATH OF OFFICE - OF NEWLY APPOINTED COMMISSIONER JULIA GOUW 

DISCUSSION AND APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARY 



  September 26,  2017 
 

 1923 E. AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761  -  www.flyontario.com 3 
 

 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under CONSENT CALENDAR will be enacted by one motion in the 
form listed below – there will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time 
Commission votes on them, unless a member of the Commission requests a specific item 
be removed from the Consent Calendar for a separate vote. 
 
Each member of the public wishing to address the Authority on items listed on the Consent 
Calendar will be given a total of 3 minutes.  

 
1.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Minutes for the regular meeting of the Ontario International Airport Authority on August 22, 2017, 
approving same as on file with the Secretary/Assistant Secretary. 
 

2.  BILLS/PAYROLL 
 

Bills August 1, 2017 through August 31, 2017 and Payroll August 1, 2017 through August 31, 2017.  
 

3.   APPROVAL OF MEETING STIPENDS 
 

That the Ontario International Airport Authority Commission approve meeting stipends for 
Commissioner Hagman.  

 
4.  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
 
That the Ontario International Airport Authority Commission adopt Resolution No. _____ authorizing 
gthe Ontario International Airport Authority Procurement Manual. The purpose of the Ontario 
International Airport Authority (OIAA) Procurement Manual is to provide procedural guidelines on the 
application of Federal, State, Municipal laws, rules, and regulations as well as the rules, regulations, and 
procedures established by the OIAA. This Manual will be updated regularly, as required by the 
Procurement Services Division. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY TO AUTHORIZE THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO 
APPROVE THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT MANUAL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



September 26,  2017 

1923 E. AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761  -  www.flyontario.com 4 

5. AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE AND EXTEND
THE FIFTH AMENDMENT TO THE NON-EXCLUSIVE CONCESSION AGREEMENT
ONT-7683 BETWEEN THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY AND SSP
AMERICA, INC.

That the Ontario International Airport Authority Commission authorize the Interim Chief Executive
Officer to execute and extend the fifth amendment to concession agreement ONT-7683 between the
Ontario International Airport Authority and SSP America, Inc., for an additional thirteen months,
which will generate at least $142,500.00 of annual revenue to the Authority and provide continued
food and beverage service options to ONT passengers.

6. AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE A ONE (1)
MONTH LEASE EXTENSION WITH U.S. GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION ON
BEHALF OF THE TRANSPORTATION SECURITY ADMINISTRATION UPON COMPLETION
OF LEASE ASSIGNMENT FROM LOS ANGELES WORLD AIRPORTS FOR AREAS IN
TERMINALS 2 AND 4 AT ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

That the Ontario International Airport Authority Commission authorize the Interim Chief Executive
Officer to execute a one-month lease extension with the U.S. General Services Administration (GSA)
on behalf of the Transportation Security Administration (TSA) upon completion of assignment of said
lease by Los Angeles World Airports.

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS/DISCUSSION/ACTION 

7. A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN AIR CARRIER INCENTIVE PROGRAM (ACIP) TO
ENCOURAGE PASSENGER AIRLINES TO OPEN AND MAINTAIN NONSTOP
TRANSOCEANIC SERVICE TO AND FROM AIRPORTS NOT CURRENTLY SERVED IN ASIA,
AUSTRALIA/NEW ZEALAND, SOUTH AMERICA AND EUROPE.

That the Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) authorize the Interim CEO to offer
international airlines an Air Carrier Incentive Program (ACIP) to encourage them to open and maintain
nonstop transoceanic passenger service at ONT to and from airports not currently served in Asia,
Australia/New Zealand, South America and Europe.

RESOLUTION NO.__________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY COMMISSION ESTABLISHING AN AIR CARRIER 
INCENTIVES POLICY 



September 26,  2017 

1923 E. AVION STREET, ONTARIO, CA 91761  -  www.flyontario.com 5 

8. A RESOLUTION OF THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY
AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO ISSUE AND EXECUTE
NON-EXCLUSIVE AIR CARRIER OPERARATING PERMITS AT ONTARIO INTERNATINAL
AIRPORT

That the Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) Commission adopt Resolution No. ____
authorizing the Interim Chief Executive Officer, or his designee, to issue and execute Non-Exclusive
Air Carrier Operating Permits (ACOP) to air carriers who transport passengers and cargo for
compensation from Ontario International Airport (ONT or Airport) more than six (6) times in a
calendar year.

RESOLUTION NO.__________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY COMMISSION AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO ISSUE AND EXECUTE NON-
EXCLUSIVE AIR CARRIER OPERATING PERMITS AT ONTARIO 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

STAFF MATTERS

Interim Chief Executive Officer Thorpe 

COMMISSION MATTERS

President Wapner 
Vice President Loveridge 
Commissioner Bowman 
Commissioner Hagman 
Commissioner Gouw 

ADJOURNMENT

This meeting will be adjourned due to a lack of quorum to Thursday, September 28, 2017 at 8:30 a.m. 
and held at the Ontario International Airport Administration Offices, 1923 E. Avion Street, Ontario, 
California, 91761.  



ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 

MINUTES 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 22, 2017 

(Not Official Until Approved) 

A regular meeting of the Ontario International Airport Authority was held on Tuesday, 
August 22, 2017, at 1923 E. Avion Street, Room 100, Ontario, California.  

Notice of said meeting was duly given in the time and manner prescribed by law. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Commission Vice President Loveridge called the Ontario International Airport Authority 
Commission meeting to order at 3:02 p.m.  

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT:  Commissioners: Jim W. Bowman, Curt Hagman, and 
Ronald O. Loveridge.  

ABSENT:  Commissioners: Alan D. Wapner (excused). 

Also present were: Interim Chief Executive Officer Mark A. Thorpe, Assistant General 
Counsel Kevin P. Sullivan, and Commission Clerk/Assistant Secretary Claudia Y. Isbell.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice President Loveridge. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were no public comments. 

POSSIBLE CONFLICT OF INTEREST ISSUES 

1. INFORMATION RELATIVE TO POSSIBLE CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Note: agenda item contractors, subcontractors and agents which may require
member abstentions due to conflict of interests and financial interests. Commission
Member abstentions shall be stated under this item for recordation on the
appropriate item.

There were no conflict of interests reported.

Item No. 01



Ontario International Airport Authority Commission  
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, August 22, 2017 
Page 2 of 6 

 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
ITEMS PULLED: Vice President Loveridge pulled Item Nos. 6, 8, and 10 for separate 
discussion.  
 
MOTION: Moved by Commissioner Hagman, seconded by Commissioner Bowman and 
carried by those present, with President Wapner absent, to approve the Consent 
Calendar as presented except for Item Nos. 6, 8, and 10.  
 
2.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Approved minutes for the regular adjourned meeting of the Ontario International 
Airport Authority on July 26, 2017, as on file with the Secretary/Assistant Secretary. 

 
3.  BILLS/PAYROLL 
 

Approved bills July 1, 2017 through July 31, 2017 and Payroll July 1, 2017 through 
July 31, 2017.  

 
4.  APPROVAL OF MEETING STIPENDS 
 

The Ontario International Airport Authority Commission approved meeting 
stipends for Commissioner Hagman and President Wapner.  

 
5.  AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN A 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MOA) WITH U.S. CUSTOMS AND BORDER 
PROTECTION (USCBP), FOR ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (ONT) 
TO BECOME A USER FEE AIRPORT (UFA) UNDER USCBP’S UFA 
PROGRAM, AND TO ASSESS A FEE FROM ARRIVING INTERNATIONAL 
PASSENGERS TO RECOVER THE COSTS RELATED TO THE PROGRAM 

 

The Ontario International Airport Authority Commission authorized the Interim 
Chief Executive Officer to sign a MOA with USCBP for ONT to become a User Fee 
Airport by the end of 2017 and assess a $10 fee from each arriving international 
passenger, which should result in approximately $830,000, to recover costs 
associated with the UFA program. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ontario International Airport Authority Commission  
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, August 22, 2017 
Page 3 of 6 

 

7.  AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO NEGOTIATE 
AND EXECUTE A NON-EXCLUSIVE CONCESSION LEASE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY (OIAA) 
AND HG ONT RETAILERS JV FOR NEWS AND GIFT CONCESSIONS AT 
ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (ONT) 

 
The Ontario International Airport Authority Commission authorized the Interim 
Chief Executive Officer to negotiate and sign an 8-year fixed term News and Gift 
Concession Lease Agreement between Ontario International Airport Authority and 
HG ONT Retailers JV (Concessionaire) for news and gift concessions in Terminals 
2 and 4 at ONT. 
 

9.  APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT WITH HELIX ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING, 
INC. FOR PREPARATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION FOR 
ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

 
The Ontario International Airport Authority Commission authorized the Interim 
Chief Executive Officer to execute a contract with Helix Environmental Planning, 
Inc. in the amount of $124,482 to prepare environmental documentation that 
conforms to the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the demolition of existing facilities located 
in the Northwest Quadrant of Ontario International Airport. 
 

ITEMS PULLED FROM CONSENT  
 
6.  A RESOLUTION OF THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

(OIAA) SETTING RATES FOR COMMERCIAL FILMING ACTIVITY AT 
ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (ONT) 

 
The Ontario International Airport Authority Commission adopted Resolution No. 
2017-08 setting rates for commercial filming activity at the Ontario International 
Airport. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-08 A RESOLUTION OF THE ONTARIO 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY SETTING RATES FOR COMMERCIAL 
FILMING ACTIVITY AT ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
 
Vice President Loveridge asked Interim Chief Executive Officer Thorpe to provide 
more information regarding the proposed film rates.  
 
Interim Chief Executive Officer Thorpe gave a brief report on the rate adjustments 
and answered questions from Commissioners.  
 

MOTION: Moved by Commissioner Bowman, seconded by Commissioner Hagman and 
carried by a vote 3-0-1, with President Wapner absent, to adopt Resolution No. 2017-08. 
 



Ontario International Airport Authority Commission  
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, August 22, 2017 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 
 Yes No Absent 
President Wapner   X 
Vice President Loveridge X   
Commissioner Bowman X   
Commissioner Hagman X   

  
8.  AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) TO 

PURCHASE TWO MOBILE PASSENGER BOARDING RAMPS FOR $346,960, 
TO PROVIDE WIDE-BODY AIRCRAFT GROUND SUPPORT CAPABILITY AT 
THE U.S. CUSTOMS AND BORDER PROTECTION (USCBP) FEDERAL 
INSPECTION STATION (FIS) AT ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (ONT) 
 
The Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) Commission authorized the 
Interim Chief Executive Officer to purchase two mobile passenger boarding ramps 
for $346,960, and assess a ground support equipment fee on every wide-body 
aircraft operation diverted to ONT during the next three years to recover the cost 
of the ramps. 

 
Vice President Loveridge asked Interim Chief Executive Officer Thorpe to provide 
more information regarding the purchase of two mobile passenger boarding ramps.  
 
Interim Chief Executive Officer Thorpe gave a brief report on the mobile passenger 
boarding ramps and answered questions from Commissioners.  

 
MOTION: Moved by Commissioner Bowman, seconded by Commissioner Hagman and 
carried by a vote 3-0-1, with President Wapner absent, to purchase two mobile passenger 
boarding ramps for $346,960. 
 
 Yes No Absent 
President Wapner   X 
Vice President Loveridge X   
Commissioner Bowman X   
Commissioner Hagman X   

  
10.  APPROVAL OF OFFICIAL ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT BRAND AND 

LOGO AND ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY SEAL 
 
The Ontario International Airport Authority Commission considered and adopted a 
Resolution No. 2017-09 regarding a brand and airport logo for Ontario International 
Airport and official Ontario International Airport Authority seal. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-09 A RESOLUTION OF ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT AUTHORITY COMMISSION REGARDING THE OFFICIAL ONTARIO 



Ontario International Airport Authority Commission  
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, August 22, 2017 
Page 5 of 6 

 

INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT BRAND STRATEGY, LOGO, AND AN ONTARIO 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY SEAL 
 
Interim Chief Executive Officer Thorpe gave a brief report on the brand strategy, 
logo, and answered questions from Commissioners.  
 
Vice President Loveridge requested a brief report from the marketing consultant.  
 
Gail Guge, President of Guge Marketing, provided a brief background on the 
process and development of the Ontario International Airport logos.  
 
Vice President Loveridge removed the taglines from the resolution and suggested 
they be re-visited in December 2017.  
 

MOTION: Moved by Vice President Loveridge, seconded by Commissioner Hagman and 
carried by a vote 3-0-1, with President Wapner absent, to remove Section 3 of the 
resolution, and adopt amended Resolution 2017-09.  

 
 Yes No Absent 
President Wapner   X 
Vice President Loveridge X   
Commissioner Bowman X   
Commissioner Hagman X   

 
STAFF MATTERS 
 
Interim Chief Executive Officer Thorpe reported the traffic numbers at the Ontario 
International Airport indicating that July 2017 the total traffic was up 9.2% versus last year, 
6.8% year to date, driven by a 9% growth in domestic flight and 23% in international 
flights. Air-cargo traffic increased in July to 8.8%, totaling 13.9% for the year.  

 
COMMISSIONER MATTERS 
 
Commissioner Bowman shared a copy of the Omnitrans bus book featuring arrivals and 
departures every 15 minutes to the Ontario International Airport beginning 
September 5, 2017.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Vice President Loveridge adjourned the Ontario International Airport Authority 
Commission meeting at 3:42 p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 



Ontario International Airport Authority Commission  
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, August 22, 2017 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 
___________________________________________ 
CLAUDIA Y. ISBELL, CLERK OF THE BOARD 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
RONALD O. LOVERIDGE, VICE PRESIDENT 
ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 



Item No. 03





Item No. 04





RESOLUTION NO.__________  
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT AUTHORITY TO AUTHORIZE THE CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO APPROVE THE ONTARIO 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY PROCUREMENT 
MANUAL.   

 
 WHEREAS, the Ontario International Airport Authority (the “Authority”) was 

established under a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City of Ontario and 
the County of San Bernardino (the “Joint Powers Agreement”) pursuant to the Joint 
Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California (the “Joint Powers Act”), for the purpose 
of operating, maintaining, managing, developing, and marketing the Ontario International 
Airport (the “Airport”); and  

WHEREAS, the Procurement Manual (Manual) will provide those OIAA employees 
responsible for goods and services acquisition with procedural guidelines on the 
application of Federal, State, Municipal laws, rules, and regulations as well as the rules, 
regulations, and procedures established by the OIAA;  

 
WHEREAS, it is understood that this Manual will be updated regularly to reflect 

changes is rules, regulations, or company policies; 
 
WHEREAS, the Manual will provide for circumstances where OIAA can directly 

contract with vendors who have been selected through a formal tender process by the 
City of Ontario, the County of San Bernardino, or other acceptable government entity; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission hereby approves 
and authorizes the CEO to approve the OIAA Procurement Manual.  
 
SECTION 3.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 
SECTION 4. The Board Clerk of the Ontario International Airport Authority shall certify as 
to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting this 28th day of 
September, 2017. 
 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
ALAN D. WAPNER, OIAA PRESIDENT 
 
 
 
 



ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
BOARD CLERK/ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
LORI D. BALLANCE 
GENERAL COUNSEL 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
CITY OF ONTARIO     ) 
 
 
I, Claudia Y. Isbell, Assistant Secretary of the Ontario International Airport Authority, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. _____ was duly passed and adopted 
by the Commission of the Ontario International Airport Authority at their special meeting 
held _______________ by the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:  COMMISSIONERS:       
 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS:       
 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:       
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      SECRETARY/ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
The foregoing is the original of Resolution No. __________ duly passed and adopted by 
the Commission of the Ontario International Airport Authority at their special meeting held 
______________. 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      SECRETARY/ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
 
(SEAL) 
 



Item No. 05





Item No. 06





Item No. 07







RESOLUTION NO.__________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT AUTHORITY COMMISSION ESTABLISHING AN 
AIR CARRIER INCENTIVES POLICY 

WHEREAS, the Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) was established for 
the purpose of operating, maintaining, managing, and developing the Ontario 
International Airport ("Airport"), including developing air commerce and transportation; 
and 

WHEREAS, the OIAA does not currently have an Air Carrier Incentives Policy 
(ACIP); and  

WHEREAS, OIAA staff is currently in negotiation with U.S. and foreign-owned 
airlines, regarding the inauguration of international passenger service between ONT 
and points in Asia, Europe and the South Pacific; and  

WHEREAS, the OIAA Interim CEO believes that a carefully-tailored ACIP will 
incentivize airlines to introduce new trans-oceanic air service that will (1) increase 
total passenger and air cargo traffic at ONT, (2) encourage other carriers to enter the 
market, and (3) increase concession, parking and other revenues. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Ontario International Airport 
Authority as follows: 

SECTION 1. The ACIP Incentives provide a 100% waiver of terminal rentals, terminal 
use fees, and landing fees as demonstrated in (Exhibit A). 

SECTION 2. That qualifying airlines will also be eligible to receive advertising and 
marketing support from the OIAA, in an amount an in a manner to be determined by 
the OIAA CEO, so long as the amount of support has been previously approved by 
the OIAA Board of Commissioners in a fiscal year budget, or by special action.  

SECTION 3. The ACIP will be effective September 28, 2017, and will terminate June 
30, 2021, unless extended by action of the OIAA Board of Commissioners. 

SECTION 4.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

SECTION 5. The Commission Clerk of the Ontario International Airport Authority shall 
certify as to the adoption of this Resolution. 

Attachment A



PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting this ____ day of 
September, 2017. 
 
 

________________________________ 
ALAN D. WAPNER, OIAA PRESIDENT 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
SECRETARY/ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
LORI D. BALLANCE 
GENERAL COUNSEL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
CITY OF ONTARIO     ) 
 
 
I, Claudia Y. Isbell, Assistant Secretary of the Ontario International Airport Authority, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. _____ was duly passed and adopted 
by the Commission of the Ontario International Airport Authority at their special meeting 
held _______________ by the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:  COMMISSIONERS:       
 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS:       
 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:       
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      SECRETARY/ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
The foregoing is the original of Resolution No. __________ duly passed and adopted by 
the Commission of the Ontario International Airport Authority at their special meeting held 
______________. 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      SECRETARY/ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 

 
A summary of the benefits offered under the ACIP is presented in the table below: 

 
Incremental Rates and Charges 

Eligible for Incentive 

Incentive 
(Percentage 

Waiver1 ) 

Incentive Period 
Year-round 

Daily or Less-than- 
daily 

Seasonal 
Daily or Less- 

than-dailv 
Terminal Rentals 100%  

1 year 
 

1 season Terminal Use Fees 100% 
Landing Fees 100% 

 

1- Waivers will be  applied  against  amounts  due  in the  same  month as the ACIP Qualifying Service is flown, only 
against Fees or Rentals that would otherwise have been incurred to support ACIP Qualifying Service 

 



Item No. 08





RESOLUTION NO.__________  
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT AUTHORITY COMMISSION AUTHORIZING THE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO ISSUE AND EXECUTE 
NON-EXCLUSIVE AIR CARRIER OPERATING PERMITS AT 
ONTARIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT. 

 
WHEREAS, the Ontario International Airport Authority (OIAA) was established for 

the purpose of operating, maintaining, managing, and developing the Ontario 
International Airport ("Airport"), including developing air commerce and transportation; 
and 

WHEREAS, operation and control of Ontario International Airport (ONT) requires 
the OIAA to issue Non-Exclusive Air Carrier Operating Permits (ACOPs) to: (i) authorize 
the use of landing facilities, (ii) establish standard terms and conditions for use of ONT 
facilities, and (iii) identify the fees and charges that will be charged to regularly scheduled 
commercial passenger and cargo air carriers that are subject to the ACOPs; and 

 
WHEREAS, ACOPs are one of the primary legal instruments used to collect fees 

covering the use of facilities for commercial air carrier aircraft operations at ONT that have 
elected not to execute the Operating Use and Terminal Lease Agreement and/or operate 
at ONT more than (6) flights per a year, including for use of areas of the airfield, runways, 
taxiways, service roads, and common use ramps. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Ontario International Airport 

Authority as follows: 
 
 

SECTION 1. The Commission hereby approves and adopts the Non-Exclusive 
Air-Carrier Operating Permit, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment A. 

 
SECTION 2. The Commission hereby authorizes the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to 
issue and execute Non-Exclusive Air-Carrier Operating Permits as shown in Attachment 
A, and that the CEO may make minor amendments to the Non-Exclusive Air-Carrier 
Operating Permit, as necessary, to address evolving operational needs at the Ontario 
International Airport. 

 
SECTION 3.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 
SECTION 4. The Commission Clerk of the Ontario International Airport Authority shall 
certify as to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting this ____ day of 
September, 2017. 
 



 
________________________________ 
ALAN D. WAPNER, OIAA PRESIDENT 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
SECRETARY/ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
LORI D. BALLANCE 
GENERAL COUNSEL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
CITY OF ONTARIO     ) 



 
 
I, Claudia Y. Isbell, Assistant Secretary of the Ontario International Airport Authority, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. _____ was duly passed and adopted 
by the Commission of the Ontario International Airport Authority at their special meeting 
held _______________ by the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:  COMMISSIONERS:       
 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS:       
 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS:       
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      SECRETARY/ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
The foregoing is the original of Resolution No. __________ duly passed and adopted by 
the Commission of the Ontario International Airport Authority at their special meeting held 
______________. 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      SECRETARY/ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
 
(SEAL) 
 


	20170926 - Adjourned.pdf
	Mark A. Thorpe
	Alan D. Wapner
	Interim Chief Executive Officer 
	President
	Ronald O. Loveridge
	Lori D. Ballance
	Vice President 
	General Counsel
	Jim W. Bowman
	Jeff P. Reynolds
	Commissioner
	Treasurer
	1.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	2.  BILLS/PAYROLL
	6.  AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE A ONE (1) MONTH LEASE EXTENSION WITH U.S. GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION ON BEHALF OF THE TRANSPORTATION SECURITY ADMINISTRATION UPON COMPLETION OF LEASE ASSIGNMENT FROM LOS ANGELES WORLD A...


	ADPCF57.tmp
	1.  INFORMATION RELATIVE TO POSSIBLE CONFLICT OF INTEREST
	2.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	3.  BILLS/PAYROLL
	The Ontario International Airport Authority Commission authorized the Interim Chief Executive Officer to sign a MOA with USCBP for ONT to become a User Fee Airport by the end of 2017 and assess a $10 fee from each arriving international passenger, whi...


	Ontario International Airport Authority Procurement Manual 09222017.pdf
	1 PURPOSE
	1.1 OIAA’s Code of Ethics – Procurement, Purchasing, and Contracting
	1.2 THE PROCUREMENT PROCESS and financial thresholds AT the OIAA
	1.3 ROLE OF FMS AND PLANETBIDS IN THE PROCUREMENT PROCESS
	1.4 PROCUREMENT SERVICES DIVISION

	2 GLOSSARY OF PROCUREMENT TERMS
	3 GOODS, EQUIPMENT, AND NON-PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (GENPS)
	3.1 GOODS, EQUIPMENT, AND NON-PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (GENPS)
	3.2 PROCUREMENT CARD (P-CARD) DEFINITION (UP TO $10,000)
	3.3 Sub-purchase Order (UP To $5,000)
	3.4 NON-DA EMERGENCY/URGENT NECESSITY CONFIRMING PURCHASE ORDERS FOR GENPS FOR BUSINESS CONTINUITY (Up to $100,000)
	3.5 NON-DA REQUEST FOR BIDS FOR GOODS, EQUIPMENT, AND NON- PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (UP TO $100,000)
	3.6 NON-DA PIGGYBACKING FOR GOODS, EQUIPMENT, AND NON- PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (UP TO $100,000)
	3.7 NON-DA SOLE-SOURCE PROCUREMENT FOR GOODS, EQUIPMENT, AND NON-PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (UP TO $100,000)
	3.8 NON-DA AMENDMENT (PURCHASE ORDER CHANGE) FOR GENPS (UP TO $100,000)
	3.9 DA EMERGENCY/URGENT NECESSITY CONFIRMING PURCHASE ORDERS FOR GENPS (OVER $100,000)
	3.10 DA REQUEST FOR BIDS FOR GOODS, EQUIPMENT, AND NON-PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (Over $100,000)
	3.11 DA PIGGYBACKING FOR GOODS, EQUIPMENT, AND NON- PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (over $100,000)
	3.12 DA SOLE-SOURCE PROCUREMENT FOR GOODS, EQUIPMENT, AND NON-PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (OVER $100,000)
	3.13 DA CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR GOODS, EQUIPMENT, AND NON-PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (OVER $100,000)

	4 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
	4.1 Short-Form Non-DA Request for Proposals for Professional Services (up to $100,000)
	4.2 NON-DA Request for Proposals for Professional Services (up to $100,000)
	4.3 NON-DA REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (up to $100,000)
	4.4  NON-DA PIGGYBACKING FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (up to $100,000)
	4.5 NON-DA SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (up to $100,000)
	4.6 NON-DA CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (UP TO $100,000)
	4.7 DA Request for Proposals for Professional Services (OVER $100,000)
	4.8 DA REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS for Professional Services (OVER $100,000)
	4.9 DA PIGGYBACKING FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (OVER $100,000)
	4.10 DA SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (over $100,000)
	4.11 DA CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (over $100,000)
	4.12 AMENDING PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AUTHORITIES (SA)

	5 NON-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	5.1 AUTHORITY FOR EXPENDITURE (AFE)
	5.2 SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR NON-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
	5.3 PURCHASE ORDER CHANGE FOR NON-CONTRACTUAL SERVICE AUTHORITIES AND AUTHORITIES FOR EXPENDITURE

	6 POLICY AND DEFINITION FOR NON-DISCRETIONARY SERVICES
	6.1 DIRECT EXPENDITURE FOR NON-DISCRETIONARY SERVICES

	7 GOVERNMENT SERVICES
	7.1 NON-DA MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR GOVERNMENT SERVICES (up to $100,000)
	7.2 DA MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR GOVERNMENT SERVICES (ABOVE $100,000)

	8 BONDS
	Appendix A - AIP Procurement.pdf
	Section 10 from AIP-Handbook-Order-5100-38D
	Appendix U from AIP-Handbook-Order-5100-38D-2

	Appendix C - OIAA Form C - Draft.pdf
	Approved By
	     
	COPY
	DISTRIBUTION:
	Initial / Date Sent

	Date

	Appendix D - OIAA Form POC - Draft.pdf
	Approved By
	Required
	Approved By
	COPY
	DISTRIBUTION:
	Initial / Date Sent

	Date

	Appendix E.pdf
	BOND COMPLETION INSTRUCTIONS.pdf
	BOND COMPLETION INSTRUCTIONS



	ADPF351.tmp
	Section 1. UTermU.   The term of this Permit shall commence ________, 20___ or the date of execution and delivery of this Permit to the OIAA by Permittee which date is on the first page of this Permit, whichever is later (“Execution Date”), and termin...
	Section 2. UDefinitionsU.
	2.1 UAir CarrierU.  Any person, or persons, including corporations, that undertakes, whether directly or indirectly or by lease or any other arrangement, to engage in air commerce, that is certificated by the FAA, and that holds a current FAA certific...
	2.2 UAircraftU.  Any heavier-than-air fixed or rotary wing vehicle used or designed for flight.
	2.3 UAircraft ApronU. The part of the ramp area immediately adjacent to the terminal that is used for the maneuvering to and from active taxiways.
	2.4 UAircraft Movement AreaU.  The areas provided for the landing, takeoff and taxiing of Aircraft, including all runways, taxiways, ramps and Aircraft Apron.
	2.5 UAirport Operations AreaU.  Areas and facilities provided for the landing, takeoff and taxiing of Aircraft, including the Aircraft Movement Area, Aircraft parking areas, areas required for approach and clear zones, airfield access and related road...
	2.6 UAirportU.  Shall mean the land, with all improvements thereon and to be erected thereon, owned and/or operated by the OIAA or its successor in interest, designated as Ontario International Airport and other locations as may be added from time to ...
	2.7 UAirport Certification ManualU. A manual approved by the Chief Executive Officer which includes operating procedures, facilities and equipment descriptions, responsibility assignments, and other information needed by Airport personnel with respect...
	2.8 UCFRU.  The Code of Federal Regulations.
	2.9 UOIAAU.  The Ontario International Airport Authority, a joint exercise of powers authority organized and existing under the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California, commencing with California Government Code section 6500, as now or...
	2.10 UOIAA AttorneyU.  The General Counsel on behalf of the OIAA.
	2.11 UDay(s) and Business Day(s)U.  The term “day(s)” shall refer to calendar days, however the term “business day(s)” shall mean all days except Saturdays and Sundays and designated official holidays.
	2.12 UDOTU. The United States Department of Transportation or its successor agency.
	2.13 UExecution DateU.  As defined in USection 1U of this Permit.
	2.14 UCEOU. Shall mean the Chief Executive Officer of the Ontario International Airport Authority or any successor agency.
	2.15 UFaithful Performance GuaranteeU.  As defined in USection 5U of this Permit.
	2.17 UFeesU.  Fees, rates and charges that include, but are not limited to, landing fees, Aircraft parking fees, terminal use fees, ramp charges, joint use fees, passenger facility charges, and ground handling commission fees.
	2.18 UFerry LandingsU.  Landings of Aircraft without revenue passengers and/or cargo on board for the purpose of positioning Aircraft to enplane passengers and/or cargo for originating a flight.
	2.19 UJoint Use SpaceU.  The space used jointly by Permittee and one or more other airlines for the accommodation of passengers which include areas used for the processing and screening of passengers and baggage and the retrieval of baggage, as shown ...
	2.20 UMaximum Gross Landing WeightU.  The FAA Certificated Maximum Gross Landing Weight or actual gross landing weight of an Aircraft if no such specification exists. In computing fees prescribed herein, except for Aircraft weighing less than 25,000 p...
	2.21 UNon-Exclusive License Agreement(s)U.  As defined in USection 3U of this Permit.
	2.22 UPassenger Facility ChargesU.  As defined in USection 16U of this Permit.
	2.23 UPermitU.  The Non-Exclusive Air Carrier Operating Permit between OIAA and Permittee as defined above.
	2.24 UPermitteeU.  As defined above.
	2.25 UPublic Aircraft Parking AreasU. Those areas which are designated by the CEO or his or her designee for the parking of Aircraft; subject, however, to changes therein at the discretion of the CEO or his or her designee at any time.
	2.26 URevenue LandingU.  Each landing of an Aircraft at Airport, except (i) landing of an Aircraft that departs from Airport and returns, without having landed at another airport, for meteorological, mechanical, safety or any other emergency purpose; ...
	2.27 URules and RegulationsU. For purposes of this Permit, references to "rules and regulations" shall include but are not limited to the “ONT Rules and Regulations,” as may be amended from time to time (the current version of the ONT Rules and Regula...
	2.28 USIDAU.  Security Identification Display Areas.
	2.29 UTSAU.  The Transportation Security Administration, or its successor agency.
	Section 3.   UAirport Operating RightsU.
	3.1 UAirfieldU.  Permittee shall have the right to use, in common with others, the Aircraft Movement Areas for the purpose of landing and taking off, and the Aircraft parking areas, if applicable.
	3.2 UDesignated Areas and GatesU.
	3.2.1 Permittee, if an Air Carrier of passengers, shall have the right to use, in common with others, for the accommodation of its passengers, the public waiting rooms, restrooms and other common use and public space areas as may be designated by the ...

	3.3 UDesignated AircraftU.  Permittee shall only utilize at Airport those Aircraft which are identified and listed on Permittee's Operations Specifications, Section D73, with the FAA.
	Section 4.  UFeesU.
	4.1 UFeesU.
	4.1.1 ULanding FeesU.  At such times and in such manner as provided by the OIAA, Permittee shall pay a landing fee to the OIAA for each Revenue Landing of an Aircraft operated by Permittee.
	4.1.2 UAircraft Parking FeesU.  At such times and in such manner as provided by the OIAA, Permittee shall pay an Aircraft parking fee to the OIAA for the use of the Public Aircraft Parking Areas.
	4.1.3 URamp ChargesU.  At such times and in such manner as provided by the OIAA, Permittee shall pay a ramp charge to the OIAA for certain use of the ramp areas at the Airport.
	4.1.4 UJoint Use FeeU.  If Permittee is an Air Carrier of passengers, Permittee shall pay a joint use fee to the OIAA for its use of the Joint Use Space at the Airport at such times and in such manner as provided by the OIAA.
	4.1.5 UOther Terminal Use FeesU.  Permittee shall pay other terminal use fees to the OIAA for its use of certain terminal facilities at the Airport such as gates, jet bridges and ticket counters, at such times and in such manner as provided by the OIAA.
	4.1.6 URates Set by OIAAU. The (i) landing fee rate; (ii) Aircraft parking fee rate, (iii) ramp charge rate, (iv) joint use fee rate, and (v) other terminal use fee rates, shall be set periodically by the OIAA and Permittee agrees to pay said Fees whe...

	4.2  UNotice of Proposed FeesU.  For new Fees proposed by the OIAA, the OIAA shall furnish Permittee with notice of such new Fees prior to adopting such new Fees.  Permittee may submit written comments on the proposed new Fees to the CEO or his or her...
	4.3 UAdjustmentsU. The OIAA may adjust the landing fee rate annually or semi-annually to meet rate covenants of the Ontario Master Trust Indenture during the term of this Permit.  If the OIAA elects to adjust the landing fee semi-annually, such adjust...
	4.4 UYear-End Adjustment of Landing FeesU. The OIAA shall perform a year-end accounting of landing fees based on audited financial statements.  Amounts billed for landing fees in excess of actual airfield cost center requirements shall be credited to ...
	4.5 URight to ContestU.  Nothing in this Permit shall prevent Permittee from contesting the validity and/or applicability of the OIAA’s Fees. During the period of any such contest, however, unless and until relieved of the duty by order of a court of ...
	Section 5.   UPayment and Reporting RequirementsU.
	5.1 UPayment ProceduresU.
	5.1.1 USubmission of Monthly ReportsU.  Permittee shall furnish to the OIAA on or before the tenth (10th) day of each month, without demand or invoice, an accurate report (the “Monthly Reports”) of Permittee’s operations at Airport during the precedin...
	5.1.2 UPaymentU.
	5.1.2.1 ULanding FeesU. Permittee shall calculate the landing fees by multiplying the total Maximum Gross Landing Weight in thousand pounds of Permittee’s Revenue Landings by the applicable landing fee rate in effect at the time of the Aircraft opera...
	5.1.2.2 UJoint Use FeesU.  The OIAA shall invoice Permittee for any joint use fees incurred by Permittee.  Joint use fees due to the OIAA shall be payable by the twentieth (20PthP) day of each month for the prior month’s use of Joint Use Space.
	5.1.2.3 Activities of Aircraft operated by a third-party Air Carrier on behalf of Permittee must be included in such third party Air Carrier’s Monthly Reports and paid for by such third party Air Carrier.  Such third party Air Carrier must have a vali...

	5.1.3 ULate Fee for Monthly ReportsU.  If Permittee fails to furnish the OIAA with the Monthly Reports as required per USection 5.1.1U, Permittee shall pay a late fee in an amount equal to (i) One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) plus (ii) 0.5% of the previo...
	5.1.4 ULiquidated Damages for Delinquent PaymentU.
	5.1.4.1 Without waiving any rights available under this Permit or by law, in the event of late or delinquent payment of Fees, Permittee recognizes that the OIAA will incur certain expenses, the amount of which is difficult to ascertain.  Therefore, in...
	5.1.4.2  The liquidated damages for late or delinquent payments of Fees shall be ten percent (10%) Uper annumU, or that percent Uper annumU equal to the federal funds rate on the twenty-fifth (25th) day of the preceding January as established by the F...

	5.1.5 UVerificationU.  The acceptance by the OIAA of any payment made by Permittee shall not preclude the OIAA from verifying the accuracy of Permittee’s Monthly Reports or from recovering any deficiencies in payment arising from incorrect reporting b...

	5.2 UFaithful Performance GuaranteeU.
	5.2.1 In order to guarantee the payment of all Fees associated with this Permit, Permittee shall remit for the benefit of the OIAA a security deposit (the “Faithful Performance Guarantee”) in the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) or three (3) ...
	5.2.2 Permittee shall furnish such Faithful Performance Guarantee to the OIAA upon commencement of the term hereof, or, if applicable, thirty (30) days following adjustment of the Faithful Performance Guarantee amount.  If, for any reason, the Faithfu...

	5.3 UOther Record Keeping RequirementsU.
	5.3.1 UMaintenance of Books and RecordsU.
	5.3.1.1 Permittee shall, at all times during the term of this Permit, maintain and keep, for six (6) years, books, ledgers, accounts or other records wherein are kept all entries accurately reflecting the total number of landings of its Aircraft at A...
	5.3.1.2 Permittee shall maintain a copy of the appropriate page of the current FAA-approved flight manual showing the Maximum Gross Landing Weight for each type of Aircraft operated by Permittee at Airport.

	5.3.2 UAuditU.
	5.3.2.1 The CEO or his or her designee may from time to time examine, audit and copy any and all of Permittee's books, logs, records, reports and accounts of its business authorized herein to be conducted and reasonably related to this Permit. Said bo...
	5.3.2.2 Required records shall be maintained at a location within San Bernardino County and shall be made available to the CEO or his or her designee during reasonable business hours. Permittee may elect to maintain required records at a location outs...
	5.3.2.3   It is agreed that examination of books, logs, records, reports and accounts of Permittee will be made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards applicable in the circumstances and that as such, said examinations do not require...


	Section 6.   UGeneral Rules and RegulationsU.
	6.1  Permittee shall be responsible for complying with any and all present and/or future rules, regulations, restrictions, ordinances, statutes, laws, and/or orders of any federal, state, and/or local government authority regarding or relating in any ...
	6.2 Permittee shall be responsible for complying with any and all orders, directives, or conditions issued, given or imposed by the CEO or the OIAA Commission, including, but not limited to, use of the roadways, driveways, curbs, sidewalks, parking ar...
	6.3 Permittee shall be responsible for any and all civil and/or criminal penalties assessed as a result of its failure to comply with any of these rules, regulations, restrictions, ordinances, statutes, laws, orders, directives and/or conditions.
	6.4 Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to impair Permittee’s right to contest, under federal, state or local law, any such rules, regulations, orders, restrictions, directives or conditions or the reasonableness thereof.
	6.5 The OIAA shall not be liable to Permittee for any diminution or deprivation of Permittee’s rights hereunder on account of the exercise of any such authority as is provided in this section.
	Section 7.   UAirport and Airfield Security, Gates and Civil PenaltiesU
	7.1  Permittee shall be responsible for fully complying with any and all applicable present and/or future rules, regulations, restrictions, ordinances, statutes, laws, airport security agreements, and/or orders of any federal, state, and/or local gove...
	7.2 Permittee shall be responsible for requesting the OIAA to issue identification (“ID”) badges to all its employees who are authorized access to SIDA on Airport, designated in the Airport's security program and shall be responsible for the immediate...
	7.3 In addition to the foregoing, gates and doors used or controlled by Permittee which permit entry into restricted areas at Airport shall be kept locked by Permittee at all times when not in use.  When a door must remain open for operational reasons...
	7.4 Permittee shall cooperate with the OIAA to maintain and improve Airport security, and shall cooperate in investigations of violations of state and local laws, ordinances, and rules and regulations, of any federal, state and/or local governmental e...
	7.5  All civil penalties levied by the TSA for violation of TSA regulations pertaining to security gates or doors used or controlled by Permittee shall be the sole responsibility of Permittee. Permittee agrees to indemnify the OIAA for any federal civ...
	7.6 Permittee shall also be responsible for any civil and/or criminal penalties assessed of its failure to comply with any of the above regulations.
	7.7 Permittee shall be responsible for obtaining any OIAA-issued motor vehicle operating permit and ensuring that all operators of motor vehicles operated on its behalf possess current, valid and appropriate California or other state or international ...
	Section 8. UQuality of Permittee's ServicesU.
	8.1  Permittee shall, at all times during the term of this Permit, comply with all safety rules and regulations promulgated by any governmental authority having control over Permittee's operations under this Permit at Airport.
	8.2  All vehicles, automotive equipment, machinery, appliances, underground installations and other equipment controlled by Permittee in its operations under this Permit shall, at no cost to the OIAA, be maintained in good mechanical condition and sha...
	Section 9.   UNoise StandardsU.  No jet Aircraft shall operate into or out of Airport unless such Aircraft is Stage 3 compliant as set forth by FAA.
	Section 10.  UMaintenance of Aprons, Ramps and Gate PositionsU.  Permittee shall require its personnel and employees to maintain and keep those portions of the apron(s), ramp(s) and gate position(s) used by it in the loading and unloading of passenger...
	Section 11.  UDisabled or Abandoned AircraftU.   Should any Aircraft owned or operated by Permittee, through accident or for any other reason, become disabled or be abandoned in any area on Airport which could interfere with the continuous, normal ope...
	Section 12.  UIngress, Egress and Purchase of SuppliesU.
	12.1  Permittee shall, subject to approval or regulation by the OIAA, have the right to use the roads, ways and public areas of Airport, including the public facilities used in connection therewith for its (a) agents, (b) servants or employees, (c) pa...
	12.2 Nothing contained herein shall be construed to limit the right of the CEO or his or her designee to require Permittee, or its suppliers or service companies, to obtain an operating permit from the OIAA for motor vehicles traveling on the Airport ...
	12.3 Nothing in this section shall be construed as in any way limiting the general powers of the OIAA to fully exercise its governmental functions or to be a grant of any franchise, license, permit or consent to Permittee to operate motor coaches, bus...
	Section 13.  UOpen and Operational AirportU.   The OIAA shall use its best efforts to keep Airport open and in operation for landings and take-offs of Aircraft. In such regard, the OIAA shall employ or cause to be employed construction, reconstruction...
	Section 14.  UHazardous and Other Regulated SubstancesU.
	14.1  UDefinition of “hazardous substance(s)U.” For the purposes of this Permit, “hazardous substances” means:
	14.1.1 Any substance the presence of which requires the investigation or remediation under any federal, state or local statute, regulation, rule, ordinance, order, action, policy or common law; or
	14.1.2  Any substance which is or becomes defined as a hazardous waste, extremely hazardous waste, hazardous material, hazardous substance, hazardous chemical, toxic chemical, toxic substance, cancer causing substance, substance that causes reproducti...
	14.1.3 Any substance which is toxic, explosive, corrosive, flammable, infectious, radioactive, carcinogenic, mutagenic, or otherwise hazardous and is or becomes regulated by any governmental authority, agency, department, commission, council, board, o...
	14.1.4 Any substance the presence of which on the OIAA property causes or threatens to cause a nuisance upon the OIAA property or to adjacent properties or poses or threatens to pose a hazard to the health or safety of persons on or about the OIAA pro...
	14.1.5 Any substance the presence of which on adjacent properties could constitute a trespass and/or nuisance by Permittee; or
	14.1.6 Any substance, without limitation, which contains gasoline, aviation fuel, jet fuel, diesel fuel or other petroleum hydrocarbons, lubricating oils, solvents, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), asbestos, urea formaldehyde or radon gases.

	14.2  UEnvironmental IndemnityU. Except for conditions existing prior to the original occupancy of Airport or the OIAA property by Permittee or by Permittee’s predecessors in interest, and except for conditions caused by hazardous substances flowing o...
	14.3  Except for conditions existing prior to the original occupancy of OIAA property by Permittee or Permittee’s predecessors in interest, in the case of any hazardous substance spill, leak, discharge, release or improper storage on OIAA property or ...
	14.4  If Permittee installs or uses already installed underground storage tanks, above-ground storage tanks, pipelines, or other improvements on the OIAA property for the storage, distribution, use, treatment, or disposal of any hazardous substances, ...
	14.5  UPermittee’s Provision to OIAA of Environmental DocumentsU.  Permittee shall promptly supply the OIAA with complete and legible copies of all notices, reports, correspondence, and other documents sent by Permittee to or received by Permittee fro...
	14.6  USurvival of ObligationsU. This section and the obligations herein shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Permit.
	Section 15.   USigns and AdvertisementsU.
	15.1 Permittee shall not erect or maintain any sign in, on or about Airport without the prior written consent of the CEO, which consent may be withheld at the discretion of the CEO.  Prior to the erection, construction or placing of any sign(s) in, on...
	15.2 In addition, except as provided under USection 15.1U above, Permittee’s ticket counters, baggage claim areas, and podiums shall be free of all advertising, signs, credit card application dispensing units, posters and banners, including, but not n...
	Section 16. UTaxes, Charges and License FeesU.
	16.1 UIn GeneralU.
	16.1.1  Permittee shall pay all taxes of any character whatsoever that may be levied or charged against any and all types of taxable property, real or personal, that Permittee may own or use in connection with the operation of its air transportation b...
	16.1.2 If a claim is made against the OIAA for any of the above charges, the OIAA shall promptly notify Permittee in writing; provided, however, that failure by the OIAA to give such notice shall not constitute a waiver of Permittee's obligation to pa...

	16.2 UPossessory InterestsU. In addition, by executing this Permit and accepting the benefits thereof, a property interest may be created known as a “possessory interest.” If such possessory interest is created, Permittee, as the party in whom the pos...
	16.3  UPassenger Facility ChargesU. Permittee agrees to remit to the OIAA without delay, whether collected from its passengers or not, all applicable passenger facility charges (“Passenger Facility Charges”) authorized by federal law or regulation for...
	16.4  UOther FeesU. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to limit the right of the CEO to assess fees for ground handling services by an entity other than Permittee.
	16.5  URight to ContestU.
	16.5.1 Permittee’s obligations contained in this USection 16U, however, shall not prevent Permittee from contesting the validity and/or applicability of any of the above taxes, fees or charges described in this section and during the period of any su...
	16.5.2 This subsection shall have no applicability whatsoever to the obligation of Permittee to report and pay Fees to the OIAA as described and referenced in USection 5U of this Permit.

	Section 17.   UIntentionally OmittedU.
	Section 18.  UInsuranceU.
	18.1  Permittee shall procure at its expense, and keep in effect at all times during the term of this Permit, the types and amounts of insurance specified on the Required Insurance page, attached hereto, marked UExhibit AU, and made a part hereof. The...
	18.2  Each specified insurance policy (other than workers’ compensation, employers’ liability and fire and extended coverages) shall contain a severability of interest (cross liability) clause which states, “It is agreed that the insurance afforded by...
	18.3 All such insurance shall be primary and noncontributing with any other insurance held by the OIAA where liability arises out of or results from the acts or omissions of Permittee, its agents, employees, officers, assigns or any person or entity a...
	18.4  The OIAA shall have no liability for any premiums charged for such coverage(s). The inclusion of the OIAA, its Commission, and all of the OIAA’s officers, employees and agents, their successors and assigns, as additional insureds is not intended...
	18.5  At least ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of the above policies, documentation showing that the insurance coverage has been renewed or extended shall be filed with the OIAA. If such coverage is cancelled or reduced, Permittee shall, wi...
	18.6  Permittee shall provide proof of all specified insurance and related requirements to the OIAA either by production of the actual insurance policy, by use of the OIAA’s own endorsement form(s), by broker’s letter acceptable to the CEO in both for...
	18.7  The OIAA and Permittee agree that the insurance policy limits specified herein shall be reviewed for adequacy annually throughout the term of this Permit by the CEO who may, thereafter, require Permittee, on thirty (30) days’ prior, written noti...
	18.8  Submission of insurance from a non-California admitted carrier is subject to the provisions of California Insurance Code Sections 1760 through 1777, and any other regulations and/or directives from the California Department of Insurance or other...
	Section 19.    UONT Rules and RegulationsU.  Permittee shall, to the extent permitted by law, comply with the applicable provisions of Airport’s Rules and Regulations, as amended from time to time.  The terms of Airport’s Rules and Regulations shall b...
	Section 20.  UNondiscriminationU.
	20.1 UFederal Nondiscrimination ProvisionsU.
	20.1.1 Permittee for itself, its heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree that in the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operate...
	20.1.2 Permittee for itself, its personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land that: (i) no person on the grounds of race, color...
	20.1.3 Permittee assures that it will comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders, and such rules as are promulgated to assure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or handicap be excluded from par...
	20.2.4 Permittee shall furnish its services on a reasonable and not unjustly discriminatory basis to all users, and charge reasonable and not unjustly discriminatory prices for each unit or service, provided that Permittee may be allowed to make reaso...

	20.2  UNondiscrimination in Use of AirportU. There shall be no discrimination against
	20.3 UNondiscrimination in EmploymentU. During the term of this Permit, Permittee agrees and obligates itself in the performance of this Permit not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of the employee’s or applicant...
	Section 21.  UOIAA Held HarmlessU. In addition to the other provisions of this Permit, Permittee shall indemnify, defend, keep and hold the OIAA, including its Commissioners, and the OIAA’s directors, officers, agents, servants, and employees, harmles...
	Section 22.  UDefault and Right of TerminationU.
	22.1  If either party hereto should fail to perform, keep, or observe any of the terms, covenants or conditions herein contained on its part to be performed, kept or observed, the other party may give written notice to correct such condition or cure s...
	22.2   Subsection 24.1 above, however, shall not affect any rights of the OIAA to terminate this Permit if there should be any default in the payment by Permittee of the compensation required to be paid herein.  If there is such a default, the OIAA ma...
	22.3 The OIAA shall further have the right to terminate this Permit in its entirety and all rights ensuing therefrom immediately upon the occurrence of any of the following:
	22.3.1 The occurrence of any act, subject to Permittee’s right to appeal, which operates to deprive Permittee of the rights, power, licenses, lease, if applicable, permits or authorities necessary for the conduct of its air transportation operations a...
	22.3.2 The filing by or against Permittee of any petition in bankruptcy, whether voluntary or involuntary;
	22.3.3 The making or entering into by Permittee of any assignment for the benefit of creditors;
	22.3.4 The levy of any attachment, execution, appointment of a receiver or other process of court by which possession of the operating rights of Permittee hereunder are seized, levied upon or attempted to be held by reason thereof by any person other ...
	22.3.5 Any assignment of this Permit by operation of law; or
	22.3.6 The cessation of Permittee’s air transportation operations at Airport for a continuous period in excess of one hundred and eighty (180) days, except by reason of labor dispute, or for seasonal operators who have notified the OIAA of intent to r...

	Section 23.  UCross-DefaultU. A material default or breach of the terms of any other lease, license, permit, or contract held by Permittee with the OIAA shall constitute a material breach of the terms of this Permit and shall give the OIAA the right t...
	Section 24.   UAssignments and EncumbrancesU.
	24.1 Neither Permittee, nor any assignee or other successor of Permittee, shall in any manner, directly or indirectly, by operation of law or otherwise, assign, transfer or encumber this Permit, or any portion thereof or any interest therein, nor lice...
	24.2 Any attempts to assign, transfer or encumber this Permit, or any licensing or authorizing the use of, in whole or in part, the rights granted by this Permit, shall be void and shall confer no right, title or interest in or to this Permit, upon an...
	24.3 Consent to one assignment, transfer, or encumbrance shall not be deemed to be consent to any subsequent assignment, transfer or encumbrance. This Permit shall not, nor shall any interest therein, be assignable as to the interest of Permittee by o...
	24.4  A request by Permittee for assignment shall be submitted to the OIAA in writing along with a fully executed copy of the proposed assignment.
	24.5       For purposes of this section, any merger or consolidation of Permittee (in which Permittee is not the surviving party), any sale of substantially all of the assets of Permittee, any other circumstances that results in an assignment o...
	24.6 When proper consent has been given by the OIAA, the provisions of this Permit shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, the heir(s), successor(s), executor(s), administrator(s) and assign(s) of the parties hereto.
	Section 25.   USurrender of PossessionU. Subject to any Federal law or regulation that may apply, upon the expiration of this Permit, or its earlier termination as herein provided, Permittee shall remove all of its property from Airport and shall surr...
	Section 26.  UPayments and NoticesU.
	26.1  UPayments to OIAAU. All Fees payable hereunder shall be paid to the Ontario International Airport Authority, 1923 E. Avion Avenue, Ontario, CA 91761, unless and until the OIAA designates in writing some other place for or party to receive the pa...
	26.2 UNoticesU.
	26.2.1 Written notices to the OIAA hereunder and to the OIAA’s Attorney shall be given by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to said parties at Ontario International Airport Authority, 1923 E. Avion Avenue, Ontario, CA 91761,...
	26.2.2 Written notices to Permittee hereunder shall be given by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to:
	26.2.3 All such notices, except as otherwise provided herein, may either be delivered personally to the CEO and to the OIAA Attorney, in the one case, or to Permittee in the other case, or may be deposited in the United States mail, properly addressed...

	Section 27.  UWaiverU. The waiver by either party of any breach of any term, covenant or condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other term, covenant or condition, or of any subsequent breach of the same term, covenant or ...
	Section 28.  UAgent for Service of ProcessU. It is expressly agreed and understood that if Permittee is not a resident of the State of California, or is a partnership or joint venture without a partner or member resident in said state, or is a foreign...
	Section 29.  UAttorneys’ FeesU. If the OIAA shall, without any fault, be made a party to any litigation commenced by or against Permittee arising out of Permittee’s use or occupancy of Airport and which Permittee is finally adjudicated to be liable, t...
	Section 30.   UOIAA’s Right to Contract with Others Regarding Permit RightsU. The rights granted hereunder by this Permit are not exclusive in nature, and the OIAA specifically reserves the right to enter into similar additional permit agreements at A...
	Section 31.  UMiscellaneous ProvisionsU.
	31.1  UFair MeaningU. The language of this Permit shall be construed according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against either the OIAA or Permittee.
	31.2  UDeprivation of Permittee’s RightsU. The OIAA shall not be liable to Permittee for any diminution or deprivation of Permittee’s rights under this Permit which may result from Permittee’s obligation to comply with any and all applicable laws, rul...
	31.3  USection HeadingsU. The section headings appearing herein are for the convenience of the OIAA and Permittee, and shall not be deemed to govern, limit, modify, or in any manner affect the scope, meaning, or intent of the provisions of this Permit.
	31.4  UVoid ProvisionsU. If any provision of this Permit is determined to be void by any court of competent jurisdiction, then such determination shall not affect any other provision of this Permit, and all such other provisions shall remain in full f...
	31.5  UTwo ConstructionsU. It is the intention of the parties hereto that if any provision of this Permit is capable of two constructions, one of which would render the provision void and the other of which would render the provision valid, then the p...
	31.6  ULaws of CaliforniaU. This Permit shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California.
	31.7  UOIAA’s ConsentU. In each instance herein where the OIAA’s, the Commission’s or the CEO’s approval or consent is required before Permittee may act, such approval or consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, unless otherwise provided.
	31.8  UGenderU. The use of any gender herein shall include all genders, and the use of any number shall be construed as the singular or the plural, all as the context may require.
	31.9  UExclusivityU. It is understood and agreed that nothing herein contained shall be construed to grant or authorize the granting of an exclusive right within the meaning of 49 U.S.C. §40103(e) and 49 U.S.C §47107(a)(4).
	31.10  URights of United States GovernmentU. This Permit shall be subordinate to the provisions and requirements of any existing or future agreement between the OIAA and the United States relative to the development, operation, or maintenance of Airpo...
	31.11  UWar or National EmergencyU. This Permit and all the provisions hereof shall be subject to whatever right the United States Government now has or in the future may have or acquire affecting the control, operation, regulation, and taking over of...
	31.12  UCumulative RightsU. Each right of the parties hereto is cumulative and is in addition to every other legal right, which the party may have in the event of any default by the other.
	31.13  UVenueU. Venue of any action brought under this Permit shall, at the OIAA’s own option, lie in San Bernardino County.
	31.14  UIntegration ClauseU. It is understood that no alteration or variation of the terms of this Permit shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto, and that no oral understanding or agreement, not incorporated herein in w...
	31.15  UTimeU. Time shall be of the essence in complying with the terms, conditions and provisions of this Permit.
	31.16  UOther AgreementsU. This Permit, and the terms, conditions, provisions and covenants hereof, shall not in any way change, amend, modify, alter, enlarge, impair or prejudice any of the rights, privileges, duties or obligations of either of the p...
	31.17  UAdditional FAA ProvisionsU. Permittee will not make use of permitted premises in any manner which might interfere with the landing and takeoff of Aircraft from Airport or otherwise constitute a hazard. Permittee will not erect any structure or...
	31.18  UMultiple CounterpartsU. This Permit may be executed in a number of identical counterparts, each of which for all purposes is deemed an original, and all of which constitute collectively one agreement.  Facsimile signatures may be utilized, but...
	31.19  UApprovalsU. Any approvals required by the OIAA under this Permit shall not relate to, constitute a waiver or, supersede or otherwise limit or affect the governmental approvals or rights of the OIAA as a governmental agency, including the appro...
	31.20  UOrdinance and Code Language GovernsU. Ordinance and code language, if any, is provided as a convenience to the parties only. In the event of a discrepancy between the language in this Agreement and the applicable ordinance and/or code, or amen...
	31.21 UAmendments to Ordinances and CodesU. The obligation to comply with any ordinances and codes which have been incorporated into this Permit by reference, shall extend to any amendments which may be made to those ordinances and codes during the te...

	20170926 - Adjourned.pdf
	Mark A. Thorpe
	Alan D. Wapner
	Interim Chief Executive Officer 
	President
	Ronald O. Loveridge
	Lori D. Ballance
	Vice President 
	General Counsel
	Jim W. Bowman
	Jeff P. Reynolds
	Commissioner
	Treasurer
	1.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	2.  BILLS/PAYROLL
	6.  AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE A ONE (1) MONTH LEASE EXTENSION WITH U.S. GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION ON BEHALF OF THE TRANSPORTATION SECURITY ADMINISTRATION UPON COMPLETION OF LEASE ASSIGNMENT FROM LOS ANGELES WORLD A...





